
ABABABAB    
SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL COMMUNITIES 
 

MONDAY 17 JUNE 2013 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2. Declaration of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council.  

Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration. 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 26 March 2013 
 

3 - 6 

4. The Impact of Welfare Reform 
 

7 - 14 

5. Update on Superfast Broadband in Rural Areas 
 

15 - 20 

6. Use of Homecare Monitoring System - Update 
 

21 - 22 

7. Review of 2012-2013 and Work Programme 2013-14 
 

23 - 34 

8. Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 
 

35 - 46 

9. Date of the next Meeting 
 

 

 Monday, 15th July 2013 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible. 
 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
 

Public Document Pack



Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: D Over (Chairman), D Lamb (Vice Chairman), D Sanders, D McKean, E Murphy, 
D Harrington and N Sandford 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: S Allen, J R Fox and Sylvester 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



 

AB 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL COMMUNITIES  

HELD IN THE 
BOURGES & VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH 

ON 
26 MARCH 2013 

 
Present: Councillors D Over (Chairman), D McKean, J Peach, D Harrington E Murphy 

and N Sandford  
 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

Mark Speed  
Richard Mayes  
Julia Chatterton 
Dania Castagliuolo 
 

Transport and Infrastructure Planning Manager  
Passenger Transport Contracts and Planning Manager  
Flood and Water Management Officer 
Governance Officer 

 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Sanders and Lamb. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
  

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on  14 January 2013   
 

The minutes of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities meeting held on 14 January 
2012 were approved as a true and accurate record. 
 

4. Flood and Water Management Activities Undertaken by Peterborough City Council  
  
 This report was presented to the Commission to inform them of the work being carried out by 

the Council within the area of water management and to assist with raising awareness of 
flood risk and water management issues within Peterborough. 

 
The Commission was requested to note the report, endorse the services being provided and 
offer suggestions for inclusion in the work programme. 
 
Members were also asked that following the meeting they utilise any future opportunities as 
Councillors to raise awareness of the need for residents and businesses to prepare for 
severe weather events (e.g. flood risk and drought).  
 
The following comments, observations and questions were raised: 
 

• Members queried whether Peterborough City Council had the option to use resources 
from other authorities if necessary. The Flood and Water Management Officer informed 
Members that Peterborough worked closely with other authorities in Emergency Planning 
and with the Planning Development Management Team. The right approach would be to 
look at a catchment area as a whole to enable resources to be shared and authorities to 
learn from each other. 

• Members queried whether the issue with the water pumps in Thorney had been resolved. 
Members were informed that Anglian Water had resolved the problem by replacing the 

3



 

wastewater (foul) pumps. The company’s data also showed that the rain water was not 
entering into the foul system. 

• Members queried whether plans for new developments in Thorney were being reviewed 
in terms of whether the water systems could cope with the new builds. Members were 
advised that following detailed discussions Anglian Water had advised that they felt their 
water systems would be able to cope with the new development.  

• Members were concerned that the B1040 road was being closed due to flood warnings 
when the road did not appear to be flooded. Members were advised that Peterborough 
City Council closed the North Bank road. However the B1040 was the responsibility of 
Cambridgeshire County Council and it was understood that they were looking at ways of 
addressing issues. The Environment Agency had also been asked to reassess the 
timings of their flood warnings. However the roads would always need to be closed before 
water levels were due to rise for the safety of residents. 

• Members queried what the Council’s biggest concern would be if the weather continued 
to stay extreme. that the Flood and Water Management Officer advised members that  in 
her opinion it could be the element of new developments and the changes in drainage 
systems. The concern was not with work the Council carried out but whether the 
forthcoming Government regulations would lay an appropriate foundation to ensure the 
new system would run correctly. 

• Members queried whether the Council were the right point of contact if there was an issue 
with dykes or drains. Members were advised to contact the Council and even if it was not 
Council property they could find out who it belonged to. If, for example, there was an 
issue with a private land owner’s management of a watercourse and this posed a risk to 
the community then the Council could act to get them to comply with relevant legislation 
i.e. enforcement action could be taken.  

• Members queried whether it would be possible to object or recommend that a new 
development should have water retention or drainage systems built in to the planning 
application or would this be at the discretion of the developer to decide. Members were 
informed that from April 2014 it would be possible for the Council to insist that these 
measures were put in place. 
 

ACTION AGREED  
  
The Commission noted the report and endorsed the Flood and Water Management services 
being provided by the Council. 
 

5. Passenger Transport and Bus Services in Rural Areas 
 
 This report was delivered along with a presentation at the request of the Commission who 

requested information on the following items: 
 

• Any Developments with Call Connect 

• A description of rural services as they stood 

• Likely Problems and development 
 
The report advised the Commission that there were no recent developments regarding Call 
Connect however as part of the bus service review options around expanding existing 
demand response (including all Call Connect) was being considered. 
 
The Commission were advised that Members had received an invitation to contact a member 
of the transport team regarding any concerns they may have had regarding the reduction in 
subsidised passenger transport services as a result of budget changes adopted on 6 March 
2013 at full Council. 
 
Among the services subsidised were: 
 

• Some of Stagecoach’s weekend and evening buses 

4



 

• Local Link 401/401A, 404, 406, 407, 408, 410, and 411 Enterprise 

• Local Link 413 Centrebus  

• Community Link and Dial-a-Ride  
 
Members were asked to consider the report, feedback any comments to officers and were 
also recommended to make an appointment with the team to discuss the item further. 
 
The following comments, observations and questions were raised: 
 

• Members were concerned that the budget saving would not be achieved as it was not 
going to be looked in to for a further six months and £750,000 would already have been 
spent. The Transport and Infrastructure Planning Manager advised members that there 
was more money in the transport pot this year therefore that would allow the transport 
team six months to find £600,000 savings. 

• Members were concerned that elderly people and rural people would be impacted the 
most by these changes and queried whether the Equality Impact Assessment would 
reflect this. Members were informed that the Equality Impact Assessment would look at 
elderly people and people in rural areas.  

• Members queried what the budget was for the transportation service in 2013/14. 
Members were informed that for the whole year the budget was around 1.4 million 
pounds. 

• Members queried whether any other contracts other than those indicated in 4.1 of the 
report needed to be reviewed on 1 April. Members were informed that all of the Local Link 
contracts would be reviewed on 1 April 2013. 

• Members queried why Call Connect was not included in the review. Members were 
informed that the demand responsive services would be used where the timetabled bus 
services were extracted.  

• Members commented that all Equality Impact Assessments should have been carried out 
before the decisions to cut services were made as once the budget had been halved 
there was no opportunity to retract. Members were advised that Equality Impact 
Assessments were taken on Local Link in the first stage because the contract expired on 
31 March 2013 therefore that service needed to be assessed quicker to enable a 
procurement exercise to take place however Equality Impact Assessments would also be 
undertaken on voluntary Partnership and Luxicab.  

• Members queried whether the reason the Council found themselves in the situation of 
having to make these cuts was because Enterprise had underbid for the contract and 
they were currently asking for an increase. Members were advised that an independent 
assessment had been carried out and it confirmed that Enterprise’s funding was at least 
£500,000 short for them to carry out all of the services efficiently. 

• Members commented that the perception was that buses in rural areas were not used to 
full capacity therefore they were not important and queried whether the council where 
being pro active in finding alternative ways to fund the rural bus services. Members were 
advised that surveys of use, reviews and Equality Impact Assessments had been carried 
out along with lots of consultation however the transport services had to work with the 
budget allocated as a single bus could cost up to £180,000 per year to run.  

• Members suggested that the Council promoted events to encourage people to use the 
bus service more frequently. 

• Members suggested that the Council was as creative as possible with the funding 
available to cover as many areas that would be without a service as possible. Members 
were informed that this was currently being investigated along with demand response 
services being included if it was not possible to have a timetabled service in an area.  

• Members queried whether it would be possible to have a minibus in the place of 
stagecoach buses on routes that were underused. The Passenger Transport and 
Planning Manager advised Members that there would be certain requirements in terms of 
vehicles that could be used on bus routes particularly with minibuses in relation to the 
Equalities Act. 

5



 

• Members suggested that school bus services were also used by the general public and 
the last bus in the evening was more reliable. 

• Members asked if the opportunity for people to use their bus pass was reduced then the 
cost to the Council would diminish. The Transport and Infrastructure Planning Manager 
advised the Commission that it was part of national legislation that certain groups of 
people received concessionary bus passes.  The Council did not receive all of the costs 
to pay the concessionary fare bill. Negotiations had taken place with operators and 
stagecoach had capped the payment.  The Council no longer paid the full amount for 
concessionary fares.  

• Members queried why the 410 bus service to the cinema ran from 12 to 4pm as most 
people went to the cinema in the evening. Members were informed that it was because 
the route was part of a timetabled service although something that could be looked in to 
was the frequency of services, cost and whether it could be integrated with another route. 
The services had to match a certain criteria to make them work and for the Council to get 
the best use out of them.  

• Members were concerned that the £430,000 grant from the Department for Transport that 
was allocated to the Council’s revenue budget was being spent on Provision of Public 
Transport Information when cuts were being made to the transport services. Members 
were advised that government would only reimburse the Council if they thought the 
scheme was appropriate and the money had been spent on Sustainable Transport  

• Members queried whether there were any plans for the transport team to go to the 
different wards in Peterborough to update residents on future plans and intentions and 
the possible impact. Members were advised that a meeting had already been held with 
Passenger Focus who were currently helping to develop an appropriate communication 
plan. 

 
ACTION AGREED  
 
The Commission requested that the Transport and Infrastructure Planning Manager: 
 
1. Provide the Commission and Parish Councils with information on the performance of the 

Call Connect transport service. 
2. Provide the Commission with the results of the Equality Impact Assessments once they 

had been completed  
 

6. Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions  
 
The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Notice of Intention to Take Key 
Decisions, containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following four months.  
Members were invited to comment on the Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant 
areas for inclusion in the Committee’s work programme. 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Committee noted the latest version of the Council’s Notice of Intention to take key 
Decisions.   
 
 
 
 
The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 9.00pm                     CHAIRMAN 

6



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 4 

17 JUNE 2013 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of  
 
Contact Officer(s) – Leonie McCarthy, Social Inclusion Manager 
Contact Details -  01733 864308 
 

THE IMPACT OF WELFARE REFORM 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
To inform the Committee of the impacts of Welfare Reform and the work being undertaken 
through the Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme to tackle poverty and destitution. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To review the programmes of work identified to tackle poverty and endorse or make 
recommendations for amendments and/or additions. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 

• Creating Stronger and Safer Communities by making Peterborough Safer and 
empowering local communities 

 

• Creating Opportunity, Tackling Inequality by supporting vulnerable people, improving 
skills, education and health 

 

• Delivering Substantial and truly sustainable growth by increasing economic prosperity. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 
In 2012 the Welfare Reform Act was introduced to the UK. This was the biggest reform of social 
security in 60 years. 
 
The reform of the welfare system was designed to deliver £18billion savings nationally initially, 
with a further £10billion thereafter.  
 
The aims were also to make the system of benefits and tax credits fairer and simpler, create 
incentives to get more people into work by ensuring that ‘work always pays’, protect the most 
vulnerable in our society and deliver fairness to those claiming benefit and to the tax payer. 
 
The changes for Peterborough include  
 

• Council Tax Benefit (c8,000 households now paying for the first time) 

• Under occupancy rules (1,737 households will be unable to meet their rents through 
housing benefit payment) 

• Social Fund and Community Care Grants (£1.2m removed in grants and loans, but 
replaced with Local Welfare Provision) 

• Benefit Cap (expected to affect c200 households in Peterborough from July 2013) 
 
There are also some major infrastructure changes in the way that benefits will be awarded 
including the introduction of Universal Credit in early 2014 to replace current welfare benefit 
support, the introduction of Personal Independence Payments for new claimants (October 2015 

7



for existing claims) and Employment Support Allowance (income benefit/income support – 
claims limited to one year) 
 
Total loss of direct benefit income to Peterborough as a result of welfare reform is estimated to 
be in the region of £26.20m. 
 
Our research into the impacts of welfare reform also included looking at the unintended 
consequences which we believe may include: 
 

• A reduction in High Street economy 

• Increased evictions 

• Overcrowding 

• Increased acquisitive crime and shoplifting 

• Domestic Abuse 

• Loan sharks 

• Substance misuse 

• Mental and Public Health issues 

• Fuel Poverty 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 
In replacement of the £1.2m social fund, which incorporated Crisis Loans and Community Care 
Grants, Peterborough City Council was this year awarded £803,904 to tackle poverty and 
destitution. 
 
To ensure these funds would mitigate the significant impacts of Welfare Reform, a group of 
strategic partners from the voluntary, private and statutory sector, working on issues to tackle 
poverty, were brought together to form a Welfare Reform Steering Group. 
 
The purpose of this group is to: 
 

• Provide a strategic overview of future welfare changes and implications 

• Oversee delivery of a Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme (PCAS) and any 
emerging trends/issues 

• Understand the impact of Universal Credit and other welfare changes and to provide the 
necessary support and resources to enable a smooth transition for affected clients in 
Peterborough 

 
Through research and wider consultation the group have agreed an action plan to provide the 
following outcomes for Peterborough: 
 

• Maximisation of Income 

• Reduction of debt 

• Crisis intervention 
 
To ensure delivery of these outcomes the Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme 
(PCAS) was set up to provide: 
 

• Peterborough’s first Credit Union (managed by Rainbow Saver Credit Union) 

• A basic needs facility for furniture, white goods and general crisis provision (managed 
by Carezone, Kingsgate) 

• A specialist voluntary information and advice network (incorporating Age UK, Citizens 
Advice Bureau, Disability Information and Advice Line, Peterborough Council for 
Voluntary Service and Peterborough and Fenland MIND) 

• Peterborough’s first citywide Foodbank with 6 outlets to date (led by Kingsgate Church) 
 
 

 

8



The first three months of the programme are to ascertain the need of clients and the level of 
resources required going forward. The majority of clients eligible for PCAS assistance  have 
been referred directly from the Department of Work of Pensions to the Citizens Advice Bureau 
for screening and advice. This enables the scheme to ensure that those most in need and 
eligible for support are assisted to maximise income and reduce debt.  A breakdown of the 
clients who accessed the service in April 2013 is illustrated in the following graphs: 
 

1

75

171

224

119

24

8

0

50

100

150

200

250

0-16 17-24 25-34 35-49 50-64 65+ Not

Recorded

PCAS Clients - Ages

 
 

PCAS Clients - Ethnicity

2% 5% 3% 5%
1%

2%1%0%0%0%

50%

27%

4% 0%

Asian or Asian British - Indian Asian or Asian British - Other

Asian or Asian British - Pakistani Black or Black British - African

Black or Black British - Caribbean Black or Black British - Other

Mixed - Other Mixed - White & Asian

Mixed - White & Black African Mixed - White & Black Caribbean

White - British White - Other

Other Unknown or Declined to reply

 
 

9



38

8

100

44

70

9

36

3

23

32

42

36

28

37

21

7
11

6

21

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Ward

PCAS Clients - by Ward Bretton North

Bretton South

Central

Dogsthorpe

East

Eye and Thorney

Fletton

Newborough

North

Orton Longueville

Orton with Hampton

Park

Paston

Ravensthorpe

Stanground Central

Walton

Werrington North

Werrington South

West
 

 
Where appropriate a voucher system enables clients to access basic needs – food, beds, 
clothing, heating, essential household items, furniture, white goods, etc.  
 
If clients are assessed to require specialist information and advice, i.e disability, mental health, 
volunteering opportunities etc, they are referred to the relevant PCAS advice agencies. 
 
Data is collected at all points of contact with clients to ascertain trends and issues, including 
information relating to Equality and Diversity. 
 
During phase one work will be undertaken to provide a City Centre Hub which will be a one stop 
service for the PCAS scheme. The hub will also incorporate access to employment 
opportunities, volunteering, business start up, information and advice, fuel poverty initiatives, 
financial management and budgeting training, ICT access and training. 
 
There will also be a roll out of basic benefits and debt training for community based agencies 
and groups to provide early intervention and support to local residents and communities 
affected by welfare reform. 
 
During the coming months we will deliver a Rogue Traders Action Plan and Tackling Illegal 
Money Lenders action plan. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 
We are exploring methods to measure the performance of our work which will include: 
 

• Reduction of clients returning after early intervention 

• No of clients securing voluntary, business start up or employment opportunities 

• No’s of individuals and community groups trained in basic advice support 

• No’ s of clients joining the credit union and undertaking money management training 

• Decrease in basic needs provision 

• Increase in skills development course completions 

• Reduction in rough sleepers and destitution 

• Increase of rogue traders and illegal money lenders fined or imprisoned 

• Increase in private organisations committed to support the work of PCAS 

• Increased befriending and neighbourhood support schemes 
 

10



7. CONSULTATION 
 
Consultation on this work has been developed from the Tackling Poverty consultation which 
has been undertaken over the past 2 years. Groups involved in the consultation are below: 
 

Accent Nene MIND 

Age UK Peterborough New Hope Charity UK 

Axiom Housing Association Peterborough Primary Care Trust 

Barnardos Peterborough Citizen’s Advice Bureau 

Birmingham City Council Peterborough Council for Voluntary Service 

CHS group Peterborough Environment City Trust 

Circle Anglia Peterborough British Red Cross 

City College Peterborough Peterborough RePaint Scheme 

Cross Keys Homes Peterborough Streets 

Department of Work and Pensions Rainbow Saver Anglia Credit Union 

DIAL Peterborough Salvation Army 

Cambridgeshire Re-Use and Recycle 
Network CCORN 

Serco 

Faith and Communities Network Social Finance Group 

Greater Peterborough Partnership Sodexho Justice Services 

St Giles Trust Spurgeons 

Home Group  

Hyde Housing  

Kingsgate Community Church   

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

• The PCAS steering group will now explore the options for a central one stop service.  

• An overarching Poverty Strategy to incorporate the work of PCAS is being developed. 

• Data sharing, research and intelligence gathering protocols will be expanded across 
relevant agencies.  

• Monthly performance management reports on outcomes achieved will be shared among 
partners.   

• Networking and good practice sharing with authorities across the UK 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

 Appendix 1 - PCAS Briefing document 
 

 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme 

Changes to the Social Fund and Community Care grants 

What is happening?

From 1 April 2013, the Social Fund and Crisis Loans will cease. This means that the Department of Work and 

Pensions (DWP) will no longer be providing money to deal with emergency situations.  A scheme is being 

established to support people facing hardship and requiring urgent assistance; this is called the Peterborough 

Community Assistance Scheme (PCAS)

What is the Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme?

The Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme (PCAS) can help people going through unexpected 

difficulties who require urgent assistance. The scheme aims to help you meet your basic needs as quickly as 

possible and will provide you with the support and advice to help you avoid similar problems in the future.

Who can Peterborough Community Assistance Scheme help?

• You must be over 16 years of age

• You must be on means tested benefits

• You must be facing hardship or dealing with an emergency situation

• You must be registered for council tax in the Peterborough council area

• If you are not in receipt of benefit payments, we may still be able to help you if you are experiencing    

exceptional difficulties

What help is available?

We can help you in the following ways:

• By providing emergency food 

• By providing emergency furniture or other basic needs such as a pram, clothing, toys or household items

• One off emergency heating or lighting payment 

• Emergency electrical appliances such as a fridge, microwave, toaster or kettle

• Debt advice

• Helping you to manage your money better

• Banking and saving with Rainbow Saver Credit Union

• Housing and employment advice

If you are provided with help and support through PCAS, please be aware that we will share your information 

with other partner agencies in order to signpost you to the appropriate organisations for further long term 

support.

Where do I go for help?

• Emergency food and furniture are provided through a voucher system issued by a  number of different 

agencies in the city.  Please contact one of the agencies listed on the reverse of this leaflet for further 

information.

• For advice around debt, housing, employment, emergency heating/lighting, emergency electrical appliances  

or for any general enquiries, please contact Citizens Advice Bureau on pcas@peterboroughcab.org.uk

0844 4994120 or in person at 16-17 St Marks Street, Peterborough PE1 2TU.

13



Who can help with referrals for emergency food or furniture?

Cross Keys Homes 01733 385000

Accent Nene Housing 01733 295400

Axiom Housing 01733 347135

(If you are a tenant of one of the above landlords)

Citizens Advice Bureau 0844 4994120

Peterborough City Council 01733 747474

British Red Cross 01733 557472

Aspire Drug Treatment Service 0800 1114354

Drinksense 01733 555532

Women’s Aid 01733 894455

Other useful contacts

Rainbow Saver (for advice around budgeting and saving)

3 Cattlemarket Road, Peterborough, PE1 1TW

Peterborough and Fenland Mind (advice and support for people 

with mental health issues)  01733 758211

Dial Peterborough (advice and support for people with 

physical disabilities) 01733 265551

Age UK – (advice and support for people aged over 55) 01733 564185

Care and Repair (an agency which assists disabled, aged and

vulnerable people to access funding for work in their home)  01733 863895

Department for Work and Pensions (for information on job 

seekers allowance and other benefits) 0845 6088603

Connexions (for information and advice aimed at young 

people up to 19 year olds) 01733 864500

14



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

17 JUNE 2013 
 

Public Report 

 
Report of the Executive Director of Strategic Resources                                     
 
Contact Officer(s) – Richard Godfrey, ICT & Transactional Services Partnership Manager 
Contact Details – richard.godfrey@peterborough.gov.uk  / tel 01733 317989 
 

UPDATE ON SUPERFAST BROADBAND IN RURAL AREAS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The purpose of this paper is to provide the Commission for Rural Communities Committee with 

an update on Superfast Broadband in Rural Areas following a request made by your 
Committee. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Commission for Rural Communities Committee are requested to endorse the work 
undertaken as part of Connecting Cambridgeshire to deliver Superfast broadband. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 The link to the Sustainable Community Strategy is by helping in ‘delivering substantial and truly 
sustainable growth’. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 

Cambridgeshire County Council and Peterborough City Council are the lead authorities 
responsible for delivering the Connecting Cambridgeshire project. The council is working in 
partnership with district councils, the Greater Cambridgeshire and Greater Peterborough 
Enterprise Partnership and key partners in business, health and education who belong to the 
Broadband Delivery Group. Connecting Cambridgeshire is aiming for at least 90% of homes 
and businesses across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough to have access to superfast 
broadband with speeds of 25Mbps or more and a minimum speed of 2Mbps for the remaining 
10% of premises by 2015. 
 
Following a competitive procurement process Connecting Cambridgeshire signed a contract 
with BT in March 2013. The contract means that Peterborough and Cambridgeshire will have 
some of the best fibre broadband in the country by 2015. 
 
Connecting Cambridgeshire is working closely with BT to ensure that the roll-out of better 
broadband starts as soon as possible but that it is undertaken in the most cost effective manner 
to ensure best use of public money.  
 
The roll-put will involve upgrading over 100 telephone exchanges and installing many new 
cabinets across Peterborough and Cambridgeshire. 
 
Parishes/areas under consideration for the first phase of the roll-out, where people may see 
some activity over the coming months are detailed in the maps in Appendix A and Appendix B. 
 
 
 
 

15



4.6 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
4.9 

The first phase of the roll-out is scheduled to deliver connectivity to a number of premises from 
December 2013 through to June 2014. Broadband services from a range of internet service 
providers will be available to premises on a rolling basis during this period.  
 
Further details of the first and subsequent phases of the roll-out plan will be announced at 
regular intervals from September 2013 as BT deployment planning is completed. 
 
 
Combined with existing commercial broadband provision, 98 per cent of homes and businesses 
across the county can expect to have access to fibre-based broadband by the end of the 
contract.  
 
The Connecting Cambridgeshire website will be updated in the coming months to include a 
map and Parish Checker allowing residents to find out how their area fits in to the programme, 
and what they can do to promote the benefits of better broadband and help more people get 
online. 
 

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 
 
 

Superfast broadband will help to boost growth and create jobs, improve our health and make 
life easier, learn new skills for success and support people who need it. 
 

6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 Connecting Cambridgeshire is a city-wide project and as such there are no implications for any 
individual Ward. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 
 

7.1 As part of the procurement process notices were placed in the local press. There is a regular 
Member Officer Working Board which will receive updates on the Superfast broadband project. 
 

8. NEXT STEPS 
 

8.1 A further update report can be presented to the Commission for Rural Communities Committee 
at an agreed date in the future. Monitoring of the Connecting Cambridgeshire project will 
continue through the Member Officer Working Board. 
 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

9.1 There were no background documents used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

10. APPENDICES 
 

10.1 
10.2 

Appendix A 
Appendix B 

  

  
 

16



17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

17 JUNE 2013 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Adult Social Care 
 
Contact Officer – Nick Blake Head of Commissioning – Older People, Physical Disabilities, 

Sensory Impairment, HIV/Aids and Carers                                  
Contact Details – 01733 452486, nickolas.blake@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
USE OF HOMECARE MONITORING SYSTEM - UPDATE 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 The Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities has requested an update report on the use of 

electronic homecare monitoring. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities is asked to note and comment on the contents 
of this report. 
 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY  
 

3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 

The provision of adult social care supports the deliver of the key outcome Creating 
opportunities – tackling inequalities, specifically in relation to improving health and supporting 
vulnerable people. 
 
Community based social care also supports the key outcome to Create strong and supportive 
communities in terms of empowering local communities and supporting people to engage in 
and be part of their local community. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 

The Scrutiny Commission for Rural Issues requested a report from the Adult Social Care 
commissioning team on access to homecare for people living in rural areas.  This report was 
presented to the Scrutiny Commission on 13 September 2012. 
 
The report covered a range of issues detailing  the Adult Social Care Department’s commitment 
to ensuring equity of access to support in rural areas through: 
 
- supporting access to homecare through enhanced hourly rates in rural areas 
 
- the use of Direct Payments to enable the employment of local personal assistants to provide 
support  
 
- the plans to monitor homecare delivery through electronic monitoring systems. 
 
The Scrutiny Commission requested an update on the implementation of electronic homecare 
call monitoring; this report seeks to provide that update.  

5. KEY ISSUES 
 

5.1 
 

Electronic call monitoring systems record information on homecare calls by logging when a call 
starts, when it ends and which worker provided the support.  This means it is possible to 

21



 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 

monitor whether people a receiving their planned support at the expected time and for the 
expected duration.  This means that any short fall or increase in expected support can be 
identified and responded to.   
 
Concerns have been raised in relation to people living in rural areas not receiving the expected 
support due to care workers cutting calls short to enable them to travel between calls.  
Electronic call monitoring would enable the Council to monitor whether this was a particular 
issue for people living in rural areas.  
 
Implementation of electronic call monitoring systems is required for all homecare providers 
accepted onto the Council’s Independent Living Support Services (ILSS) framework contract.  
This was included as a clause in all contracts but was not invoked until May 2012 with the 
expectation that ECM systems would be implemented by October 2012. 
 
Fifteen of eighteen providers had successfully implemented ECM systems by 1 October; the 
remaining three providers were able to fully implement systems by 1 January 2013. 
 
Ongoing work has been undertaken to ensure that invoices and call information provided by 
home care agencies is accurate and makes use of the ECM system information.  Compliance 
with ECM requirements is now being pro-actively monitored by the ASC Contracts Team. 
  
From April 2013 ECM data is being used to review home care invoices and to check calls are 
being delivered.  The implementation of the new frameworki case management system and 
ongoing development of data reporting means that it will be possible to compare activity against 
commissioned care calls for people living in rural areas and across the City.  
 

6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1 
 
 

The Council will be consulting with providers and service users as part of a review of the 
implementation of ECM. 

7. NEXT STEPS 
 

7.1 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
7.3 

ECM reports show that calls are being delivered and that where these are cut short there are 
reported reasons for this, however, data quality is an issue.  Planning for audits of provider call 
monitoring systems will be developed over the coming six months.  To ensure that ECM reports 
are accurate it is important that audits are included as part of contract compliance monitoring. 
 
The Council will be reviewing the implementation of ECM and using this information to inform 
further development, in particular reviewing the formatting of reports will enable more effective 
analysis of the data. 
 
The ILSS homecare framework is being retendered; ECM requirements will be included within 
the new contracts.  ECM data will be used to baseline quality standards and reporting 
requirements within the new contracts.  
 

8. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

8.1 
 

None used. 

9. APPENDICES 
 

9.1 There are no appendices to this report. 
 
 

  

22



 

SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

17 JUNE 2012 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Contact Officer – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – (01733) 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

REVIEW OF 2012/2013 AND WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2013/14 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 To provide the Commission with a review of the work undertaken during 2012/13 and to 

develop a work programme for 2013/14. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Commission considers the 2012/2013 year in review and makes recommendations on 
the future monitoring of these items where necessary. 
 

2.2 That the Commission determines its priorities, and develops a work programme for the 
forthcoming year. 
 

3. REVIEW OF 2011/12 
 

3.1 The Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities was established by Council at its annual 
meeting on 18 May 2009.  During the year 2012/2013, the Commission considered the 
following issues: 
 
Information / Update 

• Review of 2011/12 and Future Work Programme 

• Superfast Broadband – Update 

• Making Villages Energy Sustainable 
 
Monitoring / Calling to Account 

• Funding For Rural Areas 

• Overview of Emerging Changes to Planning Obligations (S106/POIS) and Details About a 
Proposed New Development Levy for Peterborough (Community Infrastructure Levy – CIL) 

• Community Action Plans – Update 

• Housing Allocation in Rural Areas 

• New Street Lighting in Rural Areas 

• Flood Management  

• Community Safety  

• Bus Services in Rural Areas 

• Disability Issues in Rural Areas 

• Primary The Provision of Carers in Rural Areas 

• Care in Rural Areas 
 
Policy / Plans / Consultation 

• Budget 2013/14 and Medium Term Financial Plan 
 

3.2 For the information of the Commission, copies of the recommendations made during the year 
are attached at Appendix 1. 

23



 
4. WORK PROGRAMME 2013/14 

 
4.1 In accordance with the Constitution, the Commission is responsible for setting its own work 

programme in line with the Council’s key priorities and the Commission’s remit. 
 

4.2 The Commission’s remit is: 
 

a) The Commission shall comprise 7 members and not more than 4 non-voting co-opted 
members. 

 
b) A member of the Cabinet shall not be appointed to the Commission. 
 
c) The quorum shall be 4 voting members. 

 
d) To discharge overview and scrutiny functions, excluding call-in, in relation to any area 

within the remit of the Scrutiny Committees which has potential for significant impact on 
the rural communities of Peterborough. 

 
e) To scrutinise the agencies, mechanisms and processes involved in delivering services 

to rural communities. 
 

f) To contribute to the development of policies, strategies and plans in relation to the 
delivery of services to rural areas. 

 
g) To advise on and monitor crime and disorder issues in rural areas. 

 
h) To establish time limited working groups to undertake specific enquiries. 

 
i) To consider any appeals from petition organisers who are not satisfied with the outcome 

of the Council’s consideration of their petition. 
 

4.3 A draft work programme which shows the items which are currently scheduled along with items 
carried over from last year is attached at Appendix 2. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

5.1 Minutes of the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities held on 18 June,  16 July, 
17 September, 19 November 2012 and 14 January, 6 February and 26 March 2013. 
 

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix 1 - Recommendations made during 2012/2013 
Appendix 2 – Draft Work Programme 2013/14 

  
 

24



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 F

O
R

 R
U

R
A

L
 I

S
S

U
E

S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 M
A
D
E
 D
U
R
IN
G
 2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 

R
E
F
E
R
R
E
D
 

T
O
 

R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 T
O
 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 

1
7
 S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
2
 

 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

C
a
re
rs
 i
n
 R
u
ra
l 

A
re
a
s
 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 w
o
rk
 p
ro
 

a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
c
a
re
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 r
u
ra
l 
a
re
a
s
. 

 

N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
 

/T
im
 B
is
h
o
p
 

T
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 b
y
 t
h
e
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
in
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

to
 
p
ro
m
o
te
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
to
 
m
a
in
ta
in
 
th
e
ir
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 
a
 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 
to
 

c
a
re
. 
 
T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 
th
e
 

u
p
ta
k
e
 o
f 
D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 f
o
r 
D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

to
 b
e
 t
h
e
 f
a
v
o
u
re
d
 w
a
y
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 t
h
e
ir
 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

B
u
d
g
e
t.
 
 
A
 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
fo
c
u
s
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
g
iv
e
n
 
to
 
ru
ra
l 
a
re
a
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
: 
  
 

•
 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 t
e
a
m
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 

 •
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

ru
ra
l 
a
re
a
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 g
a
p
s
 

e
x
is
t.
  
  

 •
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
 a
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
e
lig
ib
le
 n
e
e
d
 i
s
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 s
ta
ff
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
la
n
n
in
g
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 a
s
 a
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

is
s
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 
a
t 
re
v
ie
w
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
s
e
rs
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 

ru
ra
l 
a
re
a
s
 o
v
e
r 
2
0
1
3
/2
0
1
4
. 
  

 •
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
ts
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

25



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IS
S
IO
N
 F
O
R
 R
U
R
A
L
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 M
A
D
E
 D
U
R
IN
G
 2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 

R
E
F
E
R
R
E
D
 

T
O
 

R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 T
O
 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 

a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
a
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
re
g
is
te
r.
 

 •
 

T
h
e
 A
S
C
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 w
ill
 b
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 o
v
e
r 
2
0
1
3
/2
0
1
4
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
re
c
ip
ie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
A
s
s
is
ta
n
ts
 t
o
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
A
s
s
is
ta
n
ts
 o
v
e
r 
2
0
1
3
/2
0
1
4
. 

 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
g
re
e
s
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
e
rm
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 
it
 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 
th
a
t 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

ta
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
. 
If
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

to
 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 
p
e
o
p
le
, 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
p
e
rm
is
s
io
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 g
ra
n
te
d
. 

 

S
im
o
n
 

M
a
c
h
e
n
 

N
ic
k
 
H
a
rd
in
g
 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
re
c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 
m
a
tt
e
r 
a
s
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
u
p
lic
a
te
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 i
n
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
re
g
im
e
. 

D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 

in
 R
u
ra
l 
A
re
a
s
 

T
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 

th
a
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 
o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
s
u
b
m
it
 

u
p
d
a
te
s
 
o
n
 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 
Im
p
a
c
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

     

K
im
 S
a
w
y
e
r 

T
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 w
it
h
 D
a
v
id
 C
a
m
e
ro
n
’s
 a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
w
a
s
 
c
a
lli
n
g
 
ti
m
e
 
o
n
 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
(E
IA
).
 
 
B
ra
n
d
o
n
 
L
e
w
is
 
(t
h
e
 

P
a
rl
ia
m
e
n
ta
ry
 U
n
d
e
r-
S
e
c
re
ta
ry
 o
f 
S
ta
te
 a
t 
th
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
(D
C
L
G
))
 t
h
e
n
 w
ro
te
 

to
 
a
ll 
le
a
d
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
ie
f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

c
o
n
fi
rm
in
g
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
k
e
y
 
p
o
in
ts
 
m
a
d
e
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
P
ri
m
e
 

M
in
is
te
r.
  

 

26



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IS
S
IO
N
 F
O
R
 R
U
R
A
L
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 M
A
D
E
 D
U
R
IN
G
 2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 

R
E
F
E
R
R
E
D
 

T
O
 

R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 T
O
 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 

T
h
e
 l
e
tt
e
r 
s
e
n
t 
o
n
 2
1
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
: 

 C
o
n
fi
rm
s
 
th
e
 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 (
G
E
O
) 
to
 W
h
it
e
h
a
ll 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
E
IA
s
: 

•
 
a
re
 n
o
t,
 a
n
d
 n
e
v
e
r 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
 l
e
g
a
l 
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t;
 

a
n
d
 

•
 
c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
 s
ta
ff
 a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 

 In
fo
rm
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 G
E
O
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
p
p
lie
s
 t
o
 

th
e
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 j
u
d
g
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 p
a
y
 d
u
e
 

re
g
a
rd
 t
o
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 (
a
 d
u
ty
 t
h
a
t 
is
 i
m
p
o
s
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
4
9
 

o
f 
th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 (
E
q
A
 2
0
1
0
))
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
h
a
v
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
rt
 

to
 
ti
m
e
-c
o
n
s
u
m
in
g
, 
ti
c
k
-b
o
x
 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
 
a
t 
th
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f 
a
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
It
 
is
 
k
e
y
 
fo
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 
to
 

ta
k
e
 a
 p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
, 
ti
m
e
ly
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
t 
th
e
 o
u
ts
e
t 
a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 a
u
d
it
 t
ra
il 
o
f 

th
a
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

 S
o
 
th
e
re
 
is
 
n
o
 
lo
n
g
e
r 
a
n
y
 
le
g
a
l 
o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 
to
 
c
a
rr
y
 
o
u
t 
a
 

fo
rm
a
l 
E
IA
 u
n
d
e
r 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
4
9
 o
f 
th
e
 E
q
A
 2
0
1
0
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
th
e
re
 
is
 
n
o
 
m
e
a
n
s
 
o
f 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 
e
q
u
a
lit
y
 d
u
ty
 (
P
S
E
D
).
  

 W
h
e
re
 d
o
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
le
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il?
  
T
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
is
 

fa
v
o
u
re
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
E
q
u
a
lit
y
 
a
n
d
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
R
ig
h
ts
 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

(E
H
R
C
) 
(a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
e
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
v
o
c
a
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rt
s
 i
n
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
rs
 a
s
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
) 
is
 t
h
a
t 

27



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IS
S
IO
N
 F
O
R
 R
U
R
A
L
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 M
A
D
E
 D
U
R
IN
G
 2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 

R
E
F
E
R
R
E
D
 

T
O
 

R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 T
O
 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 
a
n
 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 
o
f 
th
e
 
e
ff
e
c
ts
 
o
n
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
a
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 d
o
n
e
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
. 
 O
u
r 

re
p
o
rt
 t
e
m
p
la
te
 s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
th
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

P
S
E
D
 
(a
n
d
 
h
o
w
 
th
e
 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 
d
o
e
s
 
in
 
fa
c
t 
d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 

P
S
E
D
),
 i
s
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
o
d
y
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 
 I
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

a
re
 
d
is
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
re
p
o
rt
 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 
d
e
a
ls
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 

P
S
E
D
 
th
e
y
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
e
it
h
e
r 
m
a
k
e
 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 
a
t 
th
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
r 
re
fe
r 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
u
n
ti
l 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
u
ty
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 

 T
h
a
t 
is
 
a
 
v
e
ry
 
lo
n
g
 
w
a
y
 
o
f 
s
a
y
in
g
 
th
a
t 
C
o
u
n
c
ils
 
m
a
y
 
n
o
t 

a
lw
a
y
s
 
c
a
rr
y
 
o
u
t 
a
 
s
e
p
a
ra
te
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 
 
T
h
e
 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

is
s
u
e
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 d
u
ty
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m
a
d
e
. 
 T
h
is
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 

 

1
9
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
e
 D
ra
ft
 

C
o
m
m
o
n
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 

A
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
o
li
c
y
 

T
h
e
 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 

H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
s
 

th
e
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 g
ra
n
t 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
in
 r
u
ra
l 
a
re
a
s
 t
o
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 o
f 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
lo
n
g
 
s
ta
n
d
in
g
 
V
ill
a
g
e
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

   

C
llr
 H
ill
e
r 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 R
E
S
O
L
V
E
D
 t
o
: 
N
o
te
 a
n
d
 

a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 C
o
m
m
o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p
o
lic
y
 t
o
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 

to
 

fu
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
. 
  
  

R
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 P
o
lic
y
 b
u
t 
n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 a
w
a
rd
in
g
 o
f 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 
–
 
th
is
 
w
o
u
ld
 
n
o
t 
p
ro
m
o
te
 
fu
ll 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 
a
n
d
 

d
e
b
a
te
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
lic
y
. 

28



S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IS
S
IO
N
 F
O
R
 R
U
R
A
L
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 M
A
D
E
 D
U
R
IN
G
 2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 D
A
T
E
 /
 

IT
E
M
 

 

R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
 

R
E
F
E
R
R
E
D
 

T
O
 

R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 T
O
 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 

1
4
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 

 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 i
n
 

R
u
ra
l 
A
re
a
s
 

T
h
e
 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
fo
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 
Is
s
u
e
s
 

lo
o
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 F
ir
s
t 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
fi
rs
t 
a
id
 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
in
 
ru
ra
l 

a
re
a
s
. 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

fo
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 

T
h
e
 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
w
a
s
 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 a
t 
it
s
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 

th
e
 2
3
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 w
a
s
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
s
k
  
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 E
a
s
t 

o
f 
E
n
g
la
n
d
 A
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
h
o
 w
e
re
 i
n
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a
t 

th
e
 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
F
ir
s
t 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
fi
rs
t 
a
id
 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 
in
 
ru
ra
l 
a
re
a
s
. 
 
T
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 a
n
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
re
a
 a
re
: 

  · 
  
  
  
  
W
h
it
tl
e
s
e
y
 (
E
a
s
tr
e
a
 a
n
d
 T
u
rv
e
s
) 
- 
1
0
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

· 
  
  
  
  
Y
a
x
le
y
 -
 5
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

· 
  
  
  
  
W
it
te
ri
n
g
- 
 6
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

· 
  
  
  
  
(n
o
rt
h
 C
a
m
b
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 M
a
rc
h
 –
 5
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

· 
  
  
  
  
D
o
d
d
in
g
to
n
 -
  
4
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

· 
  
  
  
  
C
h
a
tt
e
ri
s
 -
 3
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

  S
o
m
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
rs
 
a
re
 
s
ti
ll 
g
o
in
g
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

 D
R
A
F
T
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IS
S
IO
N
 F
O
R
 R
U
R
A
L
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
IE
S
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
U
p
d
a
te
d
: 
3
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
3
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 F
u
tu
re
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 a
n
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 P
a
u
li
n
a
 F
o
rd
 

 

U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 S
u
p
e
rf
a
s
t 
B
ro
a
d
b
a
n
d
 

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 R
ic
h
a
rd
 G
o
d
fr
e
y
 

 

U
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 H
o
m
e
c
a
re
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 S
y
s
te
m
 –
 U
p
d
a
te
  

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 N
ic
k
 B
la
k
e
  

 

1
7
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
  

 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 3
0
 M
a
y
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 6
 J
u
n
e
 

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
 o
n
 R
u
ra
l 
A
re
a
s
 

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 L
e
o
n
ie
 M
c
C
a
rt
h
y
  

 

  
 

 

C
li
n
ic
a
l 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 P
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 R
u
ra
l 
A
re
a
s
  

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 

 
1
5
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
  

 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 2
7
 J
u
n
e
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 4
 J
u
ly
 

   
D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 I
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 R
u
ra
l 
A
re
a
s
 –
 U
p
d
a
te
 

   

 

31



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 L
e
o
n
ie
 M
c
C
a
rt
h
y
 

F
ir
s
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 G
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 R
u
ra
l 
A
re
a
s
  

    C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 

 

 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 V
il
la
g
e
 H
a
ll
s
 

in
 R
u
ra
l 
A
re
a
s
 

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
u
li
e
 R
iv
e
tt
 

 

 

L
o
c
a
l 
F
lo
o
d
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
D
ra
ft
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

    C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
u
li
a
 C
h
a
tt
e
rt
o
n
 

 

S
o
la
r 
a
n
d
 W
in
d
 F
a
rm
s
 

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  

 

1
6
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
  

  D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 2
9
 A
u
g
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
  
5
 S
e
p
t 

 

  
 

  
 

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
in
 R
u
ra
l 
A
re
a
s
  

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
  

 
1
8
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
  

 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 3
1
 O
c
t 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 7
 N
o
v
 

  
 

 

32



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

  
 

  

B
ri
ti
s
h
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
o
li
c
e
  

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 

 
1
3
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
  

 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 2
4
 D
e
c
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 2
 J
a
n
 

 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
n
s
ta
b
u
la
ry
  

   C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 

 

 
 

 

 8
 o
r 
2
0
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

(J
o
in
t 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 

th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
) 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
 

 T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 M
e
d
iu
m
 

T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
P
la
n
. 

 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
/S
te
v
e
n
 P
il
s
w
o
rt
h
 

 

 
 

  
 

1
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
  

 D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 1
4
 M
a
rc
h
 

F
in
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 2
1
 M
a
rc
h
 

 
 

 
  

 

  
It
e
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 i
n
: 

  
 

 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR RURAL 
COMMUNITIES 
 

Agenda Item No. 8 

17 JUNE 2013 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Governance Officer, Scrutiny 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE KEY DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities outlining the content 

of the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  
The Notice contains those key decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the 
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new key decisions to be taken. No 
new decisions have been taken. 
 

3.2 The information in the Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to 
request further information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

3.4 
 

As the Notice is published fortnightly any version of the Notice published after dispatch of this 
agenda will be tabled at the meeting. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Notice of Intention to 
Take Key Decisions. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 

 Appendix 1 – Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions 
 
 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



  
P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
  

C
O
U
N
C
IL
’S
 N
O
T
IC
E
 O
F
 

IN
T
E
N
T
IO
N
 T
O
 T
A
K
E
 K
E
Y
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 
   

P
U
B
L
IS
H
E
D
: 
 1
6
 M
A
Y
 2
0
1
3
 

APPENDIX 1 

37



 

N
O
T
IC
E
 O
F
 I
N
T
E
N
T
IO
N
 T
O
 T
A
K
E
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

A
B

 

In
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 2
8
 d
a
y
s
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 d
a
te
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
is
 n
o
ti
c
e
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' o
n
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 n
a
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
is
 s
h
o
w
n
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
, 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r’
s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
. 
If
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 i
t’
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 a
s
 l
is
te
d
 b
e
lo
w
: 

C
llr
 C
e
re
s
te
 (
L
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 L
e
e
 (
D
e
p
u
ty
 l
e
a
d
e
r)
; 
C
llr
 S
c
o
tt
; 
C
llr
 H
o
ld
ic
h
; 
C
llr
 H
ill
e
r;
 C
llr
 S
e
a
to
n
; 
C
llr
 F
it
z
g
e
ra
ld
: 
C
llr
 D
a
lt
o
n
: 
C
llr
 W

a
ls
h
. 
 

 T
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 m

o
n
th
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 n
o
ti
c
e
 

s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
te
m
s
 m

a
y
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
in
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 N
o
ti
c
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 N
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 
S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 

H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r.
d
a
y
n
e
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 

te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
4
7
. 

 W
h
ils
t 
th
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
t 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 l
is
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
p
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 m
e
d
ia
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
, 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
o
m
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
in
s
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l,
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
lly
 s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

m
a
y
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
a
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
a
re
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
 t
h
is
 a
p
p
lie
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
A
 f
o
rm

a
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
o
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
it
, 

in
 p
ri
v
a
te
, 
w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 2
8
 c
le
a
r 
d
a
y
s
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 p
ri
v
a
te
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 (
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
) 
(M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
n
d
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
) 
(E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
1
2
. 
 

 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 (
u
n
le
s
s
 a
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
in
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
).
 

 Y
o
u
 a
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
, 
o
r 
o
b
ta
in
 e
x
tr
a
c
ts
 f
ro
m
 a
n
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
e
r 

p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
y
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 d
is
c
lo
s
u
re
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 

p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 o
r 
p
o
s
ta
g
e
. 
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
o
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 c
a
n
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
ro
m
 A
le
x
 D
a
y
n
e
s
, 
S
e
n
io
r 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
),
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 

a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r.
d
a
y
n
e
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
4
7
. 
F
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 T
e
a
m
 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
. 
 

 A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 
w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
/e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 I
f 
y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 N
o
ti
c
e
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 n
o
ti
c
e
. 

  

38



 

  

P
R
E
V
IO
U
S
L
Y
 A
D
V
E
R
T
IS
E
D
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 

M
E
E
T
IN
G
 

O
P
E
N
 T
O
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
  

S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 

C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

D
O
C
U
M
E
N
T
S
 

R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

S
U
B
M
IT
T
E
D
 T
O
 

T
H
E
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 

M
A
K
E
R
 (
IF
 A
N
Y
 

O
T
H
E
R
 T
H
A
N
 

P
U
B
L
IC
 R
E
P
O
R
T
) 

M
o
y
’s
 E
n
d
 S
ta
n
d
 

D
e
m
o
li
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
3
A
P
R
/1
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

D
e
m
o
lit
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 M
o
y
’s
 E
n
d
 

S
ta
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
e
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
's
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
t 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

S
a
le
 o
f 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 

C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
3
J
U
L
/1
1
 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
–
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 

to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 

s
a
le
 o
f 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r,
 W

a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 &
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

39



 

 R
o
ll
in
g
 S
e
le
c
t 
L
is
t 
- 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 

A
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 -
 K
E
Y
/0
1
J
U
L
/1
2
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
fo
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
fo
s
te
ri
n
g
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

C
la
re
 L
o
d
g
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
3
N
O
V
1
2
/0
6
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
C
la
re
 

L
o
d
g
e
 S
e
c
u
re
 U
n
it
. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
L
is
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
3
N
O
V
1
2
/0
8
 

C
re
a
te
 a
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

P
ro
v
id
e
r 
L
is
t 
fo
r 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 

u
n
it
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
u
tu
re
 o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 P
la
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
3
N
O
V
1
2
/0
9
 

T
o
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 o
f 

P
la
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
  

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
. 

T
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
 k
e
y
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

40



 

 C
a
re
 a
n
d
 R
e
p
a
ir
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
- 

K
E
Y
/1
8
D
E
C
1
2
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 

ra
te
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 

fa
c
ili
ty
 g
ra
n
t 
w
o
rk
. 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
o
ile
t 

a
n
d
 w
a
s
h
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
P
e
te
r 

H
il
le
r 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

N
/A
 

S
tr
o
n
g
 a
n
d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

R
u
s
s
 C
a
rr
 

C
a
re
 &
 R
e
p
a
ir
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
6
4
 

ru
s
s
.c
a
rr
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

4
1
3
 B
u
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
7
D
E
C
1
2
/0
1
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
R
o
u
te
 

4
1
3
 (
M
a
x
e
y
 t
o
 C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
) 

fr
o
m
 1
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
P
e
te
r 

H
il
le
r 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
7
1
 

m
a
rk
.s
p
e
e
d
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
4
J
A
N
1
3
/0
2
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

Y
E
S
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

F
o
u
r 
w
e
e
k
 p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

  

C
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
 P
a
lm
e
r 

C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 c
h
a
rl
o
tt
e
.p
a
lm
e
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro

u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
le
tt
o
n
 P
a
rk
w
a
y
 J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

1
7
 t
o
 2
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/2
4
J
A
N
1
3
/0
7
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw
a
rd
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
2
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
5
 i
n
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
w
a
rd
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
s
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
P
e
te
r 

H
il
le
r,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

D
a
v
id
 S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
7
1
 

m
a
rk
.s
p
e
e
d
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

41



 

S
a
le
 o
f 
C
ra
ig
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
 -
 K
E
Y
/2
5
M
A
R
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 
la
n
d
 

k
n
o
w
n
 a
s
 C
ra
ig
 S
tr
e
e
t 
C
a
r 

P
a
rk
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

  

D
a
v
id
 G
ra
y
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
1
 

d
a
v
id
.g
ra
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

S
h
o
rt
 B
re
a
k
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/0
8
A
P
R
1
3
/0
1
 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

fo
r 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
h
e
il
a
 

S
c
o
tt
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

  

O
liv
e
r 
H
a
y
w
a
rd
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

A
im
in
g
 H
ig
h
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
0
 

o
liv
e
r.
h
a
y
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u

g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 2
0
1
3
-2
0
2
3
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
8
A
P
R
1
3
/0
1
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 

b
id
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

fo
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
P
e
te
r 

H
il
le
r 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 

  

A
n
d
y
 T
a
tt
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
4
6
9
 

a
n
d
y
.t
a
tt
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

T
h
e
 E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

G
la
d
s
to
n
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
o
n
to
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 o
f 

th
e
 G
la
d
s
to
n
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 

K
E
Y
/1
8
A
P
R
1
3
/0
2
 

A
w
a
rd
 o
f 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
G
la
d
s
to
n
e
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 o
f 

th
e
 G
la
d
s
to
n
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 

S
e
a
to
n
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
J
o
h
n
 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 O
B
E
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

N
/A
 

C
re
a
ti
n
g
 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

In
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 

p
u
b
lic
. 

  

B
ri
a
n
 H
o
w
a
rd
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
- 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

42



 

 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 -
 

S
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 -
 

K
E
Y
/3
0
M
A
Y
1
3
/0
2
 

T
o
 d
e
c
id
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  o
f 
O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

Y
e
s
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
ro
s
s
-g
ro
u
p
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
. 

  

M
a
rk
 S
p
e
e
d
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 3
1
7
4
7
1
 

m
a
rk
.s
p
e
e
d
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

E
n
e
rg
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
(E
n
P
C
) 
- 

K
E
Y
/3
0
M
A
Y
/1
3
/0
3
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
G
r.
 U
ff
. 

M
a
rc
o
 C
e
re
s
te
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
r 
G
ro
w
th
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

N
/A
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
In
te
rn
a
l 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

  

J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r-
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
3
9
8
 

jo
h
n
.h
a
rr
is
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g

h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

43



 C
H
IE
F
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
'S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

H
R
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
, 
T
ra
in
in
g
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 R
e
w
a
rd
 &
 P
o
lic
y
 

 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
IC
 R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r'
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
IC
T
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

W
a
s
te
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
h
a
re
d
 T
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
T
ru
s
t 
C
lie
n
t 

 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
S
’ 
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
B
a
y
a
rd
 P
la
c
e
, 
B
ro
a
d
w
a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1
F
B
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
, 
F
a
m
ily
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 &
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 O
P
E
R
A
T
IO
N
S
 D
E
P
A
R
T
M
E
N
T
  
D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 &
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 (
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 &
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 D
e
liv
e
ry
, 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
) 
  

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
a
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
C
C
T
V
, 
C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
M
a
rk
e
ts
 &
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
T
ra
d
in
g
, 
T
o
u
ri
s
m
) 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 (
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
S
a
fe
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
C
o
h
e
s
io
n
, 
S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
, 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
F
in
a
n
c
e
) 
 

 A
D
U
L
T
 S
O
C
IA
L
 C
A
R
E
 D
ir
e
c
to
r’
s
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll
, 
B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
P
E
1
 1
H
G
 

C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 (
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
&
 C
a
re
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t;
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 H
IV
/A
ID
S
; 
R
e
g
u
la
te
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 (
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
; 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
, 
P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 &
 S
e
n
s
o
ry
 I
m
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t;
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
) 

44



 Q
u
a
lit
y
, 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &
 I
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
; 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
; 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 &
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
; 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
y
s
te
m
s
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t;
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t)
 

 

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 26 March 2013
	4 The Impact of Welfare Reform
	4. Appendix 1 - PCAS Welfare Reform - 130617 - SCRI

	5 Update on Superfast Broadband in Rural Areas
	5. Appendix A - Parishes-areas under consideration v1 - 130617 - SCRC
	5. Appendix B - Parishes-areas under considerationv1 - 130617 - SCRC

	6 Use of Homecare Monitoring System - Update
	7 Review of 2012-2013 and Work Programme 2013-14
	7. Appendix 1 -  Response to recommendations - 130617 - SCRI
	7. Appendix 2 - Draft Work Programme 2013 - 2014 - 130617

	8 Notice of Intention to Take Key Decisions
	8. Appendix 1 - Intention to Take Key Decisions - 130617 - SCRI


